
Monday, May 16, 2022 
NOTE: Village Hall is currently open to the public. The following meeting will be conducted in-
person and via teleconference. Participation in the teleconference is available to the public by 
dialing the following number and then entering the identified access code when prompted. 

Dial-in number (US): +1(646) 558-8656 
Meeting ID: 251 208 6899 
Dial-in Passcode: 31461176 
Internet Passcode: Silver18 

We recommend joining the teleconference 5 minutes early. If you are unsuccessful, hang up and try 
again. The line can become busy, and it may take a few attempts. If you get disconnected, there are 
no limitations on rejoining the meeting. If you wish to speak, unmute yourself by dialing *6.  
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE    
7 p.m. 

1. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. Roll call of Council. 
 

3. Presentation by Steve Amos regarding the Police Memorial Ceremony.  
 

4. Approval of the minutes of the April 18, 2022, Council Meeting and the minutes of the May 
4, 2022, Special Council Meeting. 

 
5. Ordinances and Resolutions: 

FIRST READING:   
RESOLUTION NO.: 34-2022 A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO PERRIN 
ASPHALT FOR THE 2022 COLD MILLING AND RESURFACING OF VARIOUS STREETS 
IN THE VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. (Finance & 
Appropriations) 
 
RESOLUTION NO.: 35-2022 A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDERS TO 
KENMORE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. FOR THE 2022 ENGLEWOOD ROAD 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $31,635.91, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. (Finance & Appropriations) 
 
ORDINANCE NO.: 36-2022 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPROPRIATIONS FOR 
CURRENT EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENDITURES OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVER 



LAKE DURING THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. (Finance & Appropriations) 
 
RESOLUTION NO.: 37-2022 A RESOLUTION DECLARING MAY 15, 2022, THROUGH MAY 
21, 2022, AS POLICE WEEK AND MAY 15, 2022, AS PEACE OFFICERS MEMORIAL DAY, 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. (Personnel & Public Affairs) 
 
RESOLUTION NO.: 38-2022 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH 
WICHERT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, INLAND 
MARINE, CRIME, AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY, GENERAL LIABILITY, PUBLIC 
OFFICIALS/EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY, LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY, 
CYBER LIABILITY, AND UMBRELLA LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE 
VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. (Planning, Zoning & 
Insurance) 
 
ORDINANCE NO.: 39-2022 AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE, ADOPT, AND ENACT THE 
2022 REPLACEMENT PAGES TO THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF 
SILVER LAKE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. (Planning, Zoning & Insurance) 
 
RESOLUTION NO.: 40-2022 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED MEMORIAL 
DONATION POLICY FOR THE PARK BOARD, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
(Planning, Zoning & Insurance) 
 
SECOND READING: 
ORDINANCE NO.: 30-2022 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 945 OF THE 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE, OHIO, TO ACCORD 
WITH OHIO EPA REGULATION FOR EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. (Public Improvements) 

• Members of the Village Planning Commission will be available for discussion. 
 
THIRD READING: None. 
 

6. Comments from the audience (3-minute maximum per person). 
 

7. Committee Hearings to discuss pending legislation. 
• Public Improvements. 
• Finance & Appropriations. 
• Personnel & Public Affairs. 
• Planning, Zoning & Insurance. 

 
8. Reports of Council’s Standing Committees. 

 
9. Mayor’s Report. 

 
10. Reports of Village Officials. 

 
11. Miscellaneous Business. 

• Discussion regarding a memorial for Robert W. Heydorn, Esq. for his decades of 
honorable service to the Village of Silver Lake. 



12. Motion to Recess into Executive Session, by majority vote with a motion and second, for the 
following accentuated reason(s): 

☒ Purchase or Sale of Property. 
 

13. The next regular meeting of Council will be on Monday, June 6, 2022, at 7 p.m. 



Page 1 of 1 
RESOLUTION NO.: 34-2022 

VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE 
INTRODUCED BY: The Administration 
 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO PERRIN ASPHALT FOR THE 2022 
COLD MILLING AND RESURFACING OF VARIOUS STREETS IN THE VILLAGE OF 
SILVER LAKE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

WHEREAS, the Council of the Village of Silver Lake, after due deliberation and upon the 
recommendation of the Village Service Director, has determined the lowest and best bidder.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Silver Lake, 
County of Summit, State of Ohio:  
 

Section 1. That the bid of Perrin Asphalt is hereby declared to be the lowest and best for 
the 2022 Cold Milling and Resurfacing Project of various Village streets for the following unit 
prices: $1.20 per square yard for Grinding; $98.50 per ton for Asphalt Concrete No. 448, Type I – 
Surface Course; $80.00 per ton for Asphalt Concrete No. 448 Type I – Intermediate Course; and 
$2.50 per gallon for No. 407 tack coat material and labor. 
 

Section 2. That Perrin Asphalt is hereby awarded the contract for the 2022 Cold Milling 
and Resurfacing Project of various streets in the Village in accordance with the unit prices itemized 
in Section 1 above, at a total cost not to exceed $264,974.00.  
 

Section 3. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, 
and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal 
action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements including 
Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

Section 4. That this Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary 
for the preservation of the public peace, health, safety, convenience and welfare of the Village of 
Silver Lake and the inhabitants thereof, for the reason that it is immediately necessary to proceed 
with the Cold Milling and Resurfacing program, and provided it receives the necessary 
affirmative votes as required by the Village Charter, it shall take effect and be in force 
immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor; otherwise it shall take effect and be in 
force at the earliest period allowed by law.  
 
PASSED:       ___________________________________ 

   William M. Church, President of Council 
 
APPROVED:      ___________________________________ 

   Bernie Hovey, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    ___________________________________ 

   Patricia Ambrose Rubright, Solicitor 
 
ATTEST:       ___________________________________ 

   Sean M. Housley, CPA, Clerk-Treasurer 



Page 1 of 2 
RESOLUTION NO.: 35-2022 

VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE 
INTRODUCED BY: The Administration 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDERS TO KENMORE CONSTRUCTION 
CO., INC. FOR THE 2022 ENGLEWOOD ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $31,635.91, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council of the Village of Silver Lake adopted Ordinance No.: 9-2022 
awarding a contract to Kenmore Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $2,623,179.50 for the 
2022 Englewood Road Improvement Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Service Director has reviewed and recommended that change orders 
totaling $31,635.91 be approved. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Silver Lake, 
County of Summit and State of Ohio: 
 
 Section 1. That change orders totaling $31,635.91 for the 2022 Englewood Road 
Improvement Project in accordance with the proposal appended hereto as “Exhibit A” are hereby 
approved. 
 
 Section 2. That the Clerk-Treasurer is hereby authorized to pay Kenmore Construction 
Co., Inc. in accordance with said change orders after approval of the Mayor. 
 
 Section 3. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of 
this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted 
in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 Section 4. That this Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary 
for the preservation of the public peace, health, safety, convenience and welfare of the Village of 
Silver Lake and the inhabitants thereof, for the reason that it is immediately necessary to approve 
and remit payment for services rendered, and provided it receives the necessary affirmative votes 
as required by the Village Charter, it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its 
passage and approval by the Mayor; otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
PASSED: 

 

  
William M. Church, President of Council 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 
 

Bernie Hovey, Mayor 
 
 

 
 



Page 2 of 2 
RESOLUTION NO.: 35-2022 

 Silver Lake, Ohio ______________ 
I, hereby certify that Resolution or Ordinance 
No. _____________ was published by title or 
in full in the local newspaper, or designated 
by Council resolution on the date or dates of 
_______________________________. 
 
_______________________________                  

Clerk of Council 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 

Patricia Ambrose Rubright, Solicitor 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 

Sean M. Housley, CPA, Clerk-Treasurer 
 



Page 1 of 5 
ORDINANCE NO.: 36-2022 

Appropriations Amendment No. 4 
 

VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE 
INTRODUCED BY: The Administration 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPROPRIATIONS FOR CURRENT EXPENSES AND 
OTHER EXPENDITURES OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE DURING THE FISCAL 
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

WHEREAS, increased appropriations are requested related to Managed IT Services in 
the Service Department ($3,000) and the 2022 Street Resurfacing Program ($45,000).  

 
WHEREAS, transferred appropriations are requested due to VIP account renumbering, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Silver Lake, 

County of Summit and State of Ohio, that: 
 
 Section 1. The annual appropriations Ordinance No.: 65-2021 be, and the same is, hereby 
amended to appropriate the following sums as follows for the fiscal year ending December 31, 
2022: 
 

    Appropriations 2022 2022 
Expenditures CFY Proposed Revised 

 Account  Appropriations Adjustments Appropriations 
    

1001 GENERAL FUND 
   

SECURITY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
   

POLICE SAFETY 
   

Personal Services 768,403.00  0.00  768,403.00  
Travel / Reclassified to Contractual Services 2,000.00  (2,000.00) 0.00  
Contractual Services 98,260.00  2,000.00  100,260.00  
Supplies & Materials 45,500.00  0.00  45,500.00  
Capital Outlay 65,000.00  0.00  65,000.00  
Total POLICE 979,163.00  0.00  979,163.00      

LEISURE TIME ACTIVITIES 
   

PARKS 
   

Personal Services 99,262.00  0.00  99,262.00  
Travel / Reclassified to Contractual Services 200.00  (200.00) 0.00  
Contractual Services 38,975.00  200.00  39,175.00  
Supplies & Materials 21,100.00  0.00  21,100.00  
Total LEISURE TIME ACTIVITIES 159,537.00  0.00  159,537.00      

TRANSPORTATION 
   

STREETS-SERVICE DEPT. 
   

Personal Services 244,579.00  0.00  244,579.00  



Page 2 of 5 
ORDINANCE NO.: 36-2022 

Appropriations Amendment No. 4 
 

Travel / Reclassified to Contractual Services 100.00  (100.00) 0.00  
Contractual Services 188,036.00  (109,900.00) 78,136.00  
Supplies & Materials 52,151.00  0.00  52,151.00  
Capital Outlay 0.00  132,500.00  132,500.00  
Total TRANSPORTATION 484,866.00  22,500.00  507,366.00      

STORM WATER/SEWERS 
   

Personal Services 45,874.00  0.00  45,874.00  
Travel / Reclassified to Contractual Services 200.00  (200.00) 0.00  
Contractual Services 62,607.00  200.00  62,807.00  
Supplies & Materials 10,480.00  0.00  10,480.00  
Capital Outlay 0.00  0.00  0.00  
Total STORM WATER/SEWER 119,161.00  0.00  119,161.00      

LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES (Council) 
   

Personal Services 25,630.00  0.00  25,630.00  
Travel / Reclassified to Contractual Services 200.00  (200.00) 0.00  
Contractual Services 1,100.00  200.00  1,300.00  
Supplies & Materials 250.00  0.00  250.00  
Total Legislative Activities 27,180.00  0.00  27,180.00      

CLERK-TREASURER 
   

Personal Services 69,490.00  0.00  69,490.00  
Travel / Reclassified to Contractual Services 1,400.00  (1,400.00) 0.00  
Contractual Services 19,850.00  1,400.00  21,250.00  
Supplies & Materials 1,000.00  0.00  1,000.00  
Other Exp - Refunds 1,200.00  0.00  1,200.00  
Total Clerk-Treasurer 92,940.00  0.00  92,940.00      

LAND & BUILDINGS 
   

Personal Services 10,110.00  0.00  10,110.00  
Contractual Services 41,117.00  3,000.00  44,117.00  
Supplies & Materials 9,050.00  0.00  9,050.00  
Capital Outlay 0.00  0.00  0.00  
Total Land & Buildings 60,277.00  3,000.00  63,277.00      

 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
   

Personal Services 76,573.00  0.00  76,573.00  
Travel / Reclassified to Contractual Services 200.00  (200.00) 0.00  
Contractual Services 35,351.00  200.00  35,551.00  
Supplies & Materials 4,950.00  0.00  4,950.00  
Total ADMINISTRATION 117,074.00  0.00  117,074.00      



Page 3 of 5 
ORDINANCE NO.: 36-2022 

Appropriations Amendment No. 4 
 

Total GENERAL GOVERNMENT 474,234.24  3,000.00  477,234.24  

Total GENERAL FUND (1001) 3,176,528.24  25,500.00  3,202,028.24      

 
2011 STREET MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 
FUND 

   

  GENERAL STREET MAINTENANCE 
   

Personal Services 80,516.00  0.00  80,516.00  
Travel / Reclassified to Contractual Services 100.00  (100.00) 0.00  
Contractual Services 120,575.00  (109,900.00) 10,675.00  
Supplies & Materials 19,038.00  0.00  19,038.00  
Capital Outlay 0.00  132,500.00  132,500.00  

Total Street Maintenance and Repair (2011) 220,229.00  22,500.00  242,729.00      

 
5010 WATER FUND 

   

OFFICE & BILLING 
   

Personal Services 74,159.00  0.00  74,159.00  
Travel / Reclassified to Contractual Services 150.00  (150.00) 0.00  
Contractual Services 34,264.00  150.00  34,414.00  
Supplies & Materials 2,305.00  0.00  2,305.00  
Capital Outlay 500.00  0.00  500.00  
Other Expenditures 500.00  0.00  500.00  
Total Office & Billing 111,878.00  0.00  111,878.00      

MAINTENANCE & DISTRIBUTION 
   

Personal Services 117,402.00  0.00  117,402.00  
Travel / Reclassified to Contractual Services 200.00  (200.00) 0.00  
Contractual Services 229,071.00  12,700.00  241,771.00  
Supplies & Materials 41,815.00  0.00  41,815.00  
Capital Outlay 500.00  0.00  500.00  
Total Maintenance & Distribution 388,988.00  12,500.00  401,488.00      

OPERATING UTILITIES 
   

Contractual Services 12,500.00  (12,500.00) 0.00  
OTHER USES 

   

Transfers 0.00  0.00  0.00  

Total WATER FUND (5010) 513,366.00  0.00  513,366.00      

 
5020 SEWER FUND 

   

OFFICE & BILLING (5A OFFICE, 5B BILLING) 
   

Personal Services 74,157.00  0.00  74,157.00  





Page 5 of 5 
ORDINANCE NO.: 36-2022 

Appropriations Amendment No. 4 
 

as required by the Village Charter, it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its 
passage and approval by the Mayor; otherwise it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 
PASSED:      ___________________________________ 

  William M. Church, President of Council 
 
 
APPROVED:      ___________________________________ 

  Bernie Hovey, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ___________________________________ 

  Patricia Ambrose Rubright, Solicitor 
 
 
ATTEST:      ___________________________________ 

  Sean M. Housley, CPA, Clerk-Treasurer 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 Silver Lake, Ohio ______________ 
I, hereby certify that Resolution or Ordinance 
No. _____________ was published by title or 
in full in the local newspaper, or designated 
by Council resolution on the date or dates of 
_______________________________. 
 ______________________________
                  Clerk of Council 
 



Page 1 of 1 
RESOLUTION NO.: 37-2022 

Silver Lake, Ohio ______________ 
I, hereby certify that Resolution or Ordinance 
No. _____________ was published by title or 
in full in the local newspaper, or designated 
by Council resolution on the date or dates of 
_______________________________. 
 ______________________________
  Clerk of Council 
 

VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE 
INTRODUCED BY: The Administration 
 
A RESOLUTION DECLARING MAY 15, 2022, THROUGH MAY 21, 2022, AS POLICE 
WEEK AND MAY 15, 2022, AS PEACE OFFICERS MEMORIAL DAY, AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, in 1962, President John F. Kennedy signed a proclamation designating May 

15th as Peace Officers Memorial Day and the week of May 15th as Police Week; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Summit County Light Ohio Blue Committee has joined the Light Ohio 
Blue campaign to show and generate support for law enforcement personnel. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Silver 

Lake, County of Summit, State of Ohio:  
 
Section 1. The Village of Silver Lake recognizes Police Week 2022 as May 15th through 
May 21st, and recognizes May 15, 2022, as Peace Officers Memorial Day. 

   
Section 2. The Village of Silver Lake commends the law enforcement officers who have 
died in the line of duty and those currently serving, both sworn and civilian staff. 

 
Section 3. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of the Council 

concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of 
this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted 
in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

Section 4. That this Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary 
for the preservation of the public peace, health, safety, convenience, and welfare of the Village 
of Silver Lake and the inhabitants thereof, for the purpose of timely expressing support of law 
enforcement personnel, and provided it receives the necessary affirmative votes as required by 
the Village Charter, it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and 
approval by the Mayor; otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period 
allowed by law.  
 
PASSED:       ___________________________________ 

   William M. Church, President of Council 
 
APPROVED:       ___________________________________ 

   Bernie Hovey, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    ___________________________________ 

   Patricia Ambrose Rubright, Solicitor 
 
ATTEST:       ___________________________________ 

   Sean M. Housley, CPA, Clerk-Treasurer 
 



Page 1 of 2 
RESOLUTION NO.: 38-2022 

VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE 
INTRODUCED BY: The Administration 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH WICHERT INSURANCE 
SERVICES, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, INLAND MARINE, CRIME, 
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY, GENERAL LIABILITY, PUBLIC OFFICIALS/ 
EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY, LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY, CYBER 
LIABILITY, AND UMBRELLA LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE 
VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to carry proper Property, Inland Marine, Crime, Automobile, 
General Liability, Public Officials Liability, Law Enforcement Liability, Cyber Liability, and 
Umbrella Liability insurance for the Village of Silver Lake; and 
 

WHEREAS, the current insurance policies expire on May 31, 2022. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Silver Lake, 
County of Summit, State of Ohio: 
 

Section 1. That the agreement for Property, Inland Marine, Crime, Automobile Liability, 
General Liability, Public Officials/Employment Practices Liability, Law Enforcement Liability, 
Cyber Liability, and Umbrella Liability Insurance coverage with Wichert Insurance Services, 
Inc. to be effective for the period June 1, 2022, to June 1, 2023, be, and the same is, hereby 
approved. Documentation therefore is on file in the office of the Clerk-Treasurer. 

 
Section 2. That the Clerk-Treasurer is hereby authorized to pay the annual premium for 

the Property, Inland Marine, Crime, Automobile Liability, General Liability, Public 
Officials/Employment Practices Liability, Law Enforcement Liability, Cyber Liability, and 
Umbrella Liability Insurance coverage in the amount of $41,054.00. 
 

Section 3. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of 
this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted 
in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 
Section 4. That this Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary 

for the preservation of the public peace, health, safety, convenience and welfare of the Village of 
Silver Lake and inhabitants thereof, for the reason that it is immediately necessary to provide 
said coverages to protect the Village from possible financial losses, and provided it receives the 
necessary affirmative votes as required by the Village Charter, it shall take effect and be in force 
immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor; otherwise it shall take effect and be in 
force at the earliest period allowed by law. 

 
PASSED:       ___________________________________ 

   William M. Church, President of Council 
 



Page 2 of 2 
RESOLUTION NO.: 38-2022 

APPROVED:       ___________________________________ 
   Bernie Hovey, Mayor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    ___________________________________ 

   Patricia Ambrose Rubright, Solicitor 
 
 
ATTEST:       ___________________________________ 

   Sean M. Housley, CPA, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 
ORDINANCE NO.: 39-2022 

VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE 
INTRODUCED BY: The Administration  
 
AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE, ADOPT, AND ENACT THE 2022 REPLACEMENT PAGES TO 
THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 
 WHEREAS, certain provisions of the Codified Ordinances of the Village are amended to 
conform to current State law as required by the Ohio Constitution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, various ordinances of a general and permanent nature have been passed by 
Council which should be included in the Codified Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Council has heretofore entered into a contract with the Walter H. Drane Company 
to prepare and publish such revision; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the codification of such ordinances, together with the new matter to be adopted, 
the matters to be amended and those to be repealed are before the Council. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Silver Lake, 
County of Summit, State of Ohio: 
 
 Section 1. That the Ordinances of the Village of Silver Lake, Ohio, of a general and permanent 
nature, as revised, recodified, rearranged and consolidated into component codes, titles, chapters, and 
sections within the 2022 Replacement Pages to the Codified Ordinances are hereby approved and 
adopted. 
 
 Section 2. That the following sections are hereby added, amended, or repealed as respectively 
indicated in order to comply with current State law: 
 

Administrative Code 
 101.03 Rules of Construction. (Amended) 
 

Traffic Code 
 303.082 Private Tow-Away Zones. (Amended) 
 303.083 Impounding Vehicles on Public Property. (Added) 
 331.211 Report of Vehicle Failing to Yield Right of Way to Public Safety Vehicle. (Amended) 
 333.03 Maximum Speed Limits. (Amended) 
 335.02 Permitting Operation Without Valid License; One License Permitted. (Amended) 
 335.021 Ohio Driver’s License Required for In State Residents. (Amended) 
 335.09 Display of License Plates or Validation Stickers; Temporary License Placard. (Amended) 
 371.13 Operation of Personal Delivery Device on Sidewalks and Crosswalks. (Added) 
 

General Offenses Code 
 513.15 Sale of Dextromethorphan. (Added) 
 517.01 Gambling Definitions. (Amended) 
 517.02 Gambling. (Amended) 
 517.06 Methods of Conducting a Bingo Game; Prohibitions. (Amended) 
 517.08 Raffles. (Amended) 
 517.09 Charitable Instant Bingo Organizations. (Amended) 



Page 2 of 2 
ORDINANCE NO.: 39-2022 

Silver Lake, Ohio ______________ 
I, hereby certify that Resolution or Ordinance 
No. _____________ was published by title or 
in full in the local newspaper, or designated by 
Council resolution on the date or dates of 
_______________________________. 
 
 ______________________________
  Clerk of Council 
 

 517.11 Bingo or Game of Chance Records. (Amended) 
 517.13 Bingo Exceptions. (Amended) 
 517.14 Instant Bingo Conduct by a Veteran’s or Fraternal Organization. (Amended) 
 517.15 Skill-Based Amusement Machines. (Amended) 
 517.16 Electronic Instant Bingo; Prohibited Conduct. (Added) 
 525.13 Interfering with Civil Rights. (Amended) 
 529.01 Liquor Control Definitions. (Amended) 
 529.07 Open Container Prohibited. (Amended) 
 537.19 Hazing Prohibited. (Added) 
 545.03 Property Exceptions as Felony Offense. (Amended) 
 545.09 Passing Bad Checks. (Amended) 
 

Fire Prevention Code 
 1519.01 Fireworks Definitions. (Amended) 
 1519.05 Application. (Amended) 
 1519.06 Safety Requirements for Fireworks Showroom Structures. (Added) 
 
 Section 3. That the complete text of the sections listed above are set forth in full in the current 
replacement pages to the Codified Ordinances, which are on file with public access in the office of the 
Clerk-Treasurer. The listing above of each new section by reference to its title shall constitute 
sufficient publication of new matter contained therein. 
 
 Section 4. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 Section 5. That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for 
the preservation of the public peace, health, safety, convenience and welfare of the Village of Silver 
Lake and the inhabitants thereof, for the reason that there exists an imperative necessity for the earliest 
publication and distribution of the 2022 Replacement Pages to the officials and residents of the Village 
of Silver Lake, so as to facilitate administration, daily operation and avoid practical and legal 
entanglements, and provided it receives the necessary votes as required by the Village Charter, it shall 
take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor; otherwise, it shall 
take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
PASSED:       ___________________________________ 

   William M. Church, President of Council 
 
APPROVED:       ___________________________________ 

   Bernie Hovey, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    ___________________________________ 

   Patricia Ambrose Rubright, Solicitor 
 
ATTEST:       ___________________________________ 

   Sean M. Housley, CPA, Clerk-Treasurer 



Page 1 of 2 
RESOLUTION NO.: 40-2022 

Silver Lake, Ohio ______________ 
I, hereby certify that Resolution or Ordinance 
No. _____________ was published by title or 
in full in the local newspaper, or designated by 
Council resolution on the date or dates of 
_______________________________. 
 
 ______________________________
  Clerk of Council 
 

VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE 
INTRODUCED BY: The Administration  
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED MEMORIAL DONATION POLICY FOR THE 
PARK BOARD, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
 WHEREAS, by Ordinance No.: 17-1995, this Council established the Park Board Memorial 
Fund; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Park Board adopted a Memorial Donation Policy by Resolution No.: 40-
2015, and now wishes to amend the donation policies and procedures for the administration of such 
fund. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Silver Lake, 
County of Summit, State of Ohio: 
 
 Section 1. That the amended Memorial Donation Policy of the Park Board, attached hereto 
as “Exhibit A,” be, and the same is, hereby approved for implementation of the purpose of the Park 
Board Memorial Fund.  
 
 Section 3. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 Section 3. That this Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for 
the preservation of the public peace, health, safety, convenience and welfare of the Village of Silver 
Lake and the inhabitants thereof, for the reason that enactment of this amended policy and 
procedures for donations to the Memorial Fund addresses an immediate need for the efficient and 
fair administration of Village resources, and provided it receives the necessary votes as required by 
the Village Charter, it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval 
by the Mayor; otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
PASSED:       ___________________________________ 

   William M. Church, President of Council 
 
APPROVED:       ___________________________________ 

   Bernie Hovey, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    ___________________________________ 

   Patricia Ambrose Rubright, Solicitor 
 
ATTEST:       ___________________________________ 

   Sean M. Housley, CPA, Clerk-Treasurer 



Resolution No.: 40-2022 Exhibit A 

Village of Silver Lake Memorial Donation Policy 

 PURPOSE 

The Village of Silver Lake provides the opportunity to donate memorials within our Village.  The 
Village has established the following guidelines in order to be consistent with our donors and give 
appropriate recognition in a tasteful manner. 

Trees, shrubs and perennials 

The Village of Silver Lake’s guidelines allow living materials such as trees, shrubs and 
perennials to be donated as living memorials.  Citizens are encouraged to contact the Silver Lake 
Park Board to discuss ideas for locations of the memorial planting.  However, the final memorial 
location will be dependent on the needs of the Village, planning processes already underway and 
approval of the Park Board.  Donors may suggest a specific specimen though final selection is 
subject to approval by the Park Board and Service Department representatives.  Species on, or 
planned to be added to, the Ohio Invasive Species list are not options for donations. Small 
plaques may be included for the planting with design, placement and language to be approved by 
the Park Board. No additional signage, adornments, decorations, lights or added features are 
permitted. 

Memorial plantings are usually installed in the spring. Staff will inform the donor of the scheduled 
date, time, and location to offer an opportunity for the donor to be present during the planting. 

The Village takes no responsibility to replace stolen, vandalized memorials, or replacement of 
trees that die due to natural causes. 

General Donations 

Donations for general park purposes, project development, and general upkeep of amenities are 
accepted and encouraged 

Deposit of Funds 

The cost of a memorial gift is $250.00. All funds for donations and memorials will be deposited 
in the Park Board Memorial Fund by the Park Board Chairman or his/her designee.  

Assignment of duties 

The Chairman will assign a board member to carry out the duties of gathering the information and 
the ordering of all required items for the memorial. The Service department will be responsible for 
picking up the items and installation. 

    

 

 

 



Resolution No.: 40-2022 Exhibit A 

 

MEMORIAL DONATION AGREEMENT FORM 

 
Donor Name 

 

 
Phone Number 

 

 
Address 

 

 
City, State, Zip Code 

 
 
 

 
Memorial Type 

 

 
Memorial Location 

 

 
Date of Installation 

 

 
Plaque Text Information 

 

Memorial Description 
(include dimensions, 
material, tree type, etc.) 

 

 

Memorial gifts to the Village of Silver Lake are considered outright and unrestricted donations.  
The Village does not guarantee permanency of the accepted donation.  If a memorial must be 
relocated, the Service Department will attempt to notify the donor in writing at the address shown 
on this form.  The donor declares to have read the Memorial Donation Policy and Agreement form.  
The donor understands and agrees with the conditions set forth in this policy. 

 
__________________________________    _____________________
 Donor Signature      Date 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

Accept  □      Deny   □ 
 
Reason_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

_________________________/_________           ____________________________/________ 
Service Director   Date  Park Board Chairman   Date 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Second Reading 



Page 1 of 1 
ORDINANCE NO.: 30-2022 

VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE 
INTRODUCED BY: The Administration  
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 945 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE 
VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE, OHIO, TO ACCORD WITH OHIO EPA REGULATION FOR 
EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

WHEREAS, in order to comply with Ohio EPA regulation, current Chapter 945 needs to 
be amended by further amendment of Ord. 15-2022, passed February 7, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, “Exhibit A” hereto incorporates the needed changes. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Silver Lake, 

County of Summit, State of Ohio: 
 

Section 1. That Chapter 945 of the Codified Ordinances of the Village of Silver Lake, 
Ohio, entitled “Erosion and Sediment Control and Post-Construction Storm Water Quality”, be, 
and the same is, hereby changed and amended as presented in “Exhibit A”. 
 

Section 2. That any and all ordinances or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed, but if consistent herewith, are hereby ratified and confirmed.  

            
Section 3. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 

concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of the 
Council; and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

Section 4. That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary 
for the immediate preservation of public peace, health, safety, convenience and welfare of the 
Village of Silver Lake and the inhabitants thereof, for the reason that the Village Codified 
Ordinances should reflect state regulations when applicable, and provided it receives the 
necessary affirmative votes as required by the Village Charter, it shall take effect and be in force 
immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor; otherwise it shall take effect and be in 
force at the earliest period allowed by law. 

 
 
PASSED:       ___________________________________ 

   William M. Church, President of Council 
 
APPROVED:       ___________________________________ 

   Bernie Hovey, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    ___________________________________ 

   Patricia Ambrose Rubright, Solicitor 
 
ATTEST:       ___________________________________ 

   Sean M. Housley, CPA, Clerk-Treasurer 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

1 

CHAPTER 945 
Erosion and Sediment Control and Post-Construction Storm Water Quality 

945.01 Purpose and Scope. 
945.02 Definitions. 
945.03 Disclaimer of Liability. 
945.04 Conflicts, Severability, Nuisances, and Responsibility. 
945.05 Regulated Activities. 
945.06 Application Procedures. 
945.07 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan. 
945.08 Abbreviated Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans. 
945.09 Compliance with Local, State, and Federal Regulations. 
945.10 Performance Standards. 
945.11 Fees. 
945.12 Bond. 
945.13 Enforcement. 
945.14 Violations. 
945.15 Appeals. 
945.16 Summit SWCD Agreement. 
945.99 Penalty. 

CROSS-REFERENCES 
Illicit discharges and illegal connections - see S.U. & P.S. Ch. 947 Riparian setback standards - 
see P. & Z. Ch. 1169 

945.01 PURPOSE AND SCOPE. 
(a) The purpose of this regulation is to establish technically feasible and economically reasonable 

standards to achieve a level of erosion and sediment control that will minimize damage to 
property and degradation of water resources and wetlands and promote and maintain the health 
and safety of the citizens of Village of Silver Lake. 

(b) This regulation will: 
(1) Allow development while minimizing increases in erosion and sedimentation. 

(2) Reduce water quality impacts to receiving water resources and wetlands that may be caused 
by new development or redevelopment activities. 

(c) This regulation applies to all parcels used or being developed, either wholly or partially, for 
new or relocated projects involving highways, underground cables, or pipelines; subdivisions 
or larger common plans of development; industrial, commercial, institutional, or residential 
projects; building activities on farms; redevelopment activities; general clearing; and all other 
uses that are not specifically exempted in Section 945.01(d). 

(d) This regulation does not apply to activities regulated by and in compliance with the Ohio 
Agricultural Sediment Pollution Abatement Rules. Rules 1501:15-5-01 to 15-5-18 of the Ohio 
Administrative Code. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

 

945.02 DEFINITIONS. 

For the purpose of this regulation, the following terms shall have the meaning herein indicated: 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

2 

(a) Abbreviated Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (Abbreviated SWP3): The written 
document that sets forth the plans and practices to be used to meet the requirements of this 
regulation if requested for a project less than one acre in size. 

(b) Acre: A measurement of area equaling 43,560 square feet. 

(c) Best Management Practices (BMPs): Schedule of activities, prohibitions of practices, 
maintenance procedures, and other management practices (both structural and non-structural) 
to minimize soil erosion and sedimentation and prevent or reduce the pollution of water 
resources and wetlands. BMPs also include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and 
practices to control facility and/or construction site runoff, spillage, or leaks; sludge or waste 
disposal; or drainage from raw material storage.  

(d) Community: Throughout this regulation, this shall refer to Village of Silver Lake, its 
designated representatives, boards, or commissions. 

(e) Construction Entrance: The permitted points of ingress and egress to development areas 
regulated under this regulation. 

(f) Development Area: A parcel or contiguous parcels owned by one person or persons, or 
operated as one development unit, and used or being developed for commercial, industrial, 
residential, institutional, or other construction or alteration that changes runoff characteristics. 

(g) Disturbed Area: An area of land subject to erosion due to the removal of vegetative cover 
and/or soil disturbing activities. 

(h) Drainage:  

(1) The area of land contributing surface water to a specific point.  

(2) The removal of excess surface water or groundwater from land by surface or subsurface 
drains. 

(i) Erosion: The process by which the land surface is worn away by the action of wind, water, ice, 
gravity, or any combination of those forces. 

(j) Erosion and Sediment Control: The control of soil, both mineral and organic, to minimize soil 
removal from the land surface and prevent its transport from a disturbed area by means of 
wind, water, ice, gravity, or any combination of those forces. 

(k) Final Stabilization: All soil-disturbing activities at the site have been completed, and a uniform 
perennial vegetative cover with a density of at least 70% coverage for the area has been 
established or equivalent stabilization measures, such as the use of mulches or geotextiles, 
have been employed. 

(l) Landscape Architect: A Professional Landscape Architect registered in the State of Ohio. 

(m) Larger Common Plan of Development or Sale: A contiguous area where multiple separate and 
distinct construction activities may occur at different times on different schedules under one 
plan. 

(n) Maximum Extent Practicable: The level of pollutant reduction that site owners of small 
municipal separate storm sewer systems regulated under 40 C.F.R. Parts 9, 122, 123, and 124, 
referred to as NPDES Storm Water Phase II, must meet. 

(o) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES): A regulatory program in the 
Federal Clean Water Act that prohibits the discharge of pollutants into surface waters of the 
United States without a permit. 

(p) Parcel: A tract of land occupied or intended to be occupied by a use, building, or group of 
buildings and their accessory uses and buildings as a unit, together with such open spaces and 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

3 

driveways as are provided and required. A parcel may contain more than one contiguous lot 
individually identified by a ‘Permanent Parcel Number’ assigned by the Summit County 
Auditor’s Office. 

(q) Person: Any individual, corporation, firm, trust, commission, board, public or private 
partnership, joint venture, agency, unincorporated association, municipal corporation, county 
or state agency, the federal government, other legal entity, or an agent thereof. 

(r) Phasing: Clearing a parcel of land in distinct sections, with the stabilization of each section 
before the clearing of the next. 

(s) Professional Engineer: A Professional Engineer registered in the State of Ohio. 

(t) Rainwater and Land Development Manual: Issued by the Ohio Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA). The manual contains Ohio’s minimum technical standards for post-
construction stormwater quality and erosion and sediment control standards. The most current 
edition of these standards shall be used with this regulation. 

(u) Runoff: The portion of rainfall, melted snow, or irrigation water that flows across the ground 
surface and is eventually conveyed to water resources or wetlands. 

(v) Sediment: The soils or other surface materials that are transported or deposited by the action 
of wind, water, ice, gravity, or any combination of those forces, as a product of erosion. 

(w) Sedimentation: The deposition or settling of sediment. 

(x) Setback: A designated transition area around water resources or wetlands left in a natural, 
usually vegetated, state to protect the water resources or wetlands from runoff pollution. This 
regulation restricts soil-disturbing activities in this area. 

(y) Soil Disturbing Activity: Clearing, grading, excavating, filling, or other alteration of the 
earth’s surface where natural or human-made ground cover is destroyed, and that may result 
in, or contribute to, erosion and sediment pollution. 

(z) Summit Soil and Water Conservation District: A subdivision of the State of Ohio organized 
under Chapter 940 of the Ohio Revised Code referring to either the Soil and Water 
Conservation District Board or its designated employee(s). Hereafter referred to as Summit 
SWCD. 

(aa) Stabilization: The use of BMPs, such as seeding and mulching, that reduce or prevent soil 
erosion by water, wind, ice, gravity, or a combination of those forces. 

(bb) Stream: A surface watercourse with a well-defined bed and bank, either natural or artificial, 
which confines and conducts continuous or periodically flowing water (ORC 6105.01) 

(cc) Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWP3): The written document that sets forth the plans 
and practices to be used to meet the requirements of this regulation. 

(dd) Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWP3) Checklist: Details the minimum requirements 
of an SWP3 set forth by the Ohio EPA, available at the Summit SWCD office or 
https://www.epa.ohio.gov/dsw/storm/const_SWP3_check. 

(ee) Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDL): A pollution budget that includes calculating the 
maximum amount of a pollutant that can occur in a body of water and allocates the necessary 
reductions to one or more pollutant sources. 

(ff) Unstable Soils: A portion of land that is identified by the Village of Silver Lake Engineer, 
Summit County Building Standards, and/or the Summit SWCD as prone to slipping, 
sloughing, or landslides, or is identified by the U.S. Department of Agriculture Natural 
Resource Conservation Service methodology as having a low soil strength. 

https://www.epa.ohio.gov/dsw/storm/const_SWP3_check
https://www.epa.ohio.gov/dsw/storm/const_SWP3_check


Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

4 

(gg) Water Resource: Any public or private body of water, including lakes and ponds, as well as 
any brook, creek, river, or stream having banks, a defined bed, and a definite direction of flow, 
either continuously or intermittently flowing. 

(hh) Wetland: Those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or groundwater at a frequency 
and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support, a 
prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions, including 
swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar areas (33 CFR part 328, as amended). 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

945.03 DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY. 

Compliance with the provisions of this regulation shall not relieve any person from responsibility for 
damage to any person otherwise imposed by law. The provisions of this regulation are promulgated to 
promote the health, safety, and welfare of the public and are not designed for the benefit of any 
individual or the benefit of any particular parcel of property. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

945.04 CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, NUISANCES, AND RESPONSIBILITY. 

(a) Where this regulation conflicts with other provisions of law or ordinance, the most restrictive 
provisions shall prevail. 

(b) If any clause, section, or provision of this regulation is declared invalid or unconstitutional by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remainder shall not be affected thereby. 

(c) This regulation shall not be construed as authorizing any person to maintain a private or public 
nuisance on their property, and compliance with the provisions of this regulation shall not be 
a defense in any action to abate such a nuisance. 

(d) Failure of Village of Silver Lake to observe or recognize hazardous or unsightly conditions or 
to recommend corrective measures shall not relieve the site owner from the responsibility for 
the condition or damage resulting therefrom, and shall not result in Village of Silver Lake, its 
officers, employees, or agents being responsible for any condition or damage resulting 
therefrom. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

945.05 REGULATED ACTIVITIES. 

(a) This regulation requires that an SWP3 be developed and implemented for all soil disturbing 
activities disturbing one (1) acre or more of total land or will disturb less than an acre of land 
but are part of a larger common plan of development or sale that will ultimately disturb one (1) 
or more acres of land in the Village of Silver Lake and on which any regulated activity of 
Section 945.01(c) is proposed. 

(b) At the request of the Village of Silver Lake Zoning Coordinator, the following activities may 
be required to submit and implement an Abbreviated SWP3: 

(1) New single-family residential construction regardless of parcel size. 

(2) Additions or accessory buildings for single-family residential construction regardless of 
parcel size. 

(3) All non-residential construction on parcels of less than one (1) acre. 

(4) General clearing activities not related to construction and regardless of parcel size. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

5 

945.06 APPLICATION PROCEDURES. 

(a) Soil Disturbing Activities Submitting an SWP3: The applicant shall submit two (2) sets of the 
SWP3, completed application, and the applicable fee to the Summit SWCD and two (2) sets of 
the SWP3 to the Village of Silver Lake Engineers office as follows: 

(1) For subdivisions: After the approval of the preliminary plans and with the submittal of the 
improvement plans. 

(2) For other construction projects: Before issuance of a zoning certificate by the Zoning 
Inspector. 

(3) For general clearing projects: Prior to issuance of a zoning permit by the Zoning Inspector. 

(b) Soil Disturbing Activities Submitting an Abbreviated SWP3: The applicant shall submit two 
(2) sets of the Abbreviated SWP3, completed application, and the applicable fees to the Summit 
SWCD as follows: 

(1) For single-family home construction: Before issuance of a zoning certificate by the Zoning 
Inspector. 

(2) For other construction projects: Before issuance of a zoning certificate by the Zoning 
Inspector. 

(3) For general clearing projects: Prior to issuance of a zoning certificate by the Zoning 
Inspector. 

(c) The Summit SWCD shall review the plans submitted under subsection (a) or (b) hereof, for 
conformance with current NPDES permit requirements and this regulation and approve or 
return with comments and recommendations for revisions. A plan rejected because of 
deficiencies shall receive a narrative report stating specific problems and the procedures for 
filing a revised plan. 

(d) Soil disturbing activities shall not begin, final plat approvals shall not be issued, and zoning 
permits shall not be issued without an approved SWP3 or Abbreviated SWP3. 

(e) A pre-construction meeting must be held with the SWCD inspector prior to earthwork 
activities. The developer, contractor, and engineer should be in attendance at the pre-
construction meeting. 

(f) SWP3 for individual sublots in a subdivision will not be approved unless the larger common 
plan of development or sale containing the sublot complies with this regulation. 

(g) Approvals issued in accordance with this regulation shall remain valid for two years. If 
regulations concerning erosion and sediment control or stormwater quality change prior to the 
beginning of active construction, a new SWP3 may be requested. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

945.07 STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN. 

(a) To control pollution of water resources and wetlands, the applicant shall submit an SWP3 in 
accordance with the requirements of this regulation. The SWP3 must comply at a minimum 
with the most recent Ohio EPA NPDES Permit. For specific requirements of an SWP3, the 
designer shall refer to the current NPDES Ohio construction stormwater general permit and the 
Summit SWCD SWP3 or Ohio EPA’s Checklist. The SWP3 must address erosion and sediment 
control during construction as well as post-construction water quality practices. Post-
construction practices must meet the requirements of the current NPDES Ohio construction 
stormwater general permit and the Village of Silver Lake stormwater management technical 
guidelines. 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

6 

(b) The SWP3 shall be certified by a professional engineer, a registered surveyor, certified 
professional erosion and sediment control specialist, or a registered landscape architect. 

(c) The SWP3 shall incorporate measures as recommended by the most current edition of 
Rainwater and Land Development: Ohio’s Standards for Stormwater Management, Land 
Development and Urban Stream Protection as issued by the Ohio EPA.  

(d) All sediment settling ponds shall be dewatered at the pond surface using a skimmer or 
equivalent device and meet trapping. The use of datasheets is recommended for determining 
important inputs to design and resulting parameters such as their contributing drainage area, 
disturbed area, detention volume, sediment storage volume, practice surface area, dewatering 
time, outlet type, and dimensions  (see Ohio EPA’s Rainwater and Land Development Manual 
and website for examples).  

(e) Soils Engineering Report: The Village of Silver Lake Engineer, Summit County Building 
Standards, or the Summit County SWCD may require the SWP3 to include a Soils Engineering 
Report based upon their determination that the conditions of the soils are unknown or unclear 
to the extent that additional information is required to protect against erosion or other hazards. 
This report shall be based upon adequate and necessary test borings and shall contain all the 
information listed below. Recommendations included in the report and reviewed by the Village 
of Silver Lake Engineer, Summit County Building Standards, or the Summit SWCD shall be 
incorporated in the grading plans and/or other specifications for site development. 

(1) Data regarding the nature, distribution, strength, stability, and erodibility of existing soils. 

(2) If applicable, data regarding the nature, distribution, strength, stability, and erodibility of 
the soil to be placed on the site. 

(3) Conclusions and recommendations for grading procedures. 

(4) Conclusions and recommended designs for interim soil stabilization devices and measures, 
and permanent soil stabilization after construction is completed. 

(5) Design criteria for corrective measures when necessary. 

(6) Opinions and recommendations concerning the stability of the site. 

(f) If an Operator’s site discharges into a watershed with an approved TMDL, the qualified 
individual shall select BMPs and provide a rationale for the individual’s selection of BMPs 
based upon pollutant removal performance and watershed pollutants of concern. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

945.08 ABBREVIATED STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLANS. 

(a) To control sediment pollution of water resources and wetlands, the applicant shall submit an 
Abbreviated SWP3 in accordance with the requirements of this regulation. 

(b) The Abbreviated SWP3 shall be certified by a professional engineer, a registered surveyor, 
certified professional erosion and sediment control specialist, or a registered landscape 
architect. 

(c) The Abbreviated SWP3 shall incorporate measures as recommended by the most current 
edition of Rainwater and Land Development: Ohio’s Standards for Stormwater Management, 
Land Development, and Urban Stream Protection as issued by the Ohio EPA. 

(d) The Abbreviated SWP3 shall be developed in accordance with guidance provided by the SWP3 
checklist. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

7 

945.09 COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS. 

Approvals issued in accordance with this regulation do not relieve the applicant of responsibility for 
obtaining all other necessary permits and/or approvals from the Ohio EPA, the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, and other federal, state, and/or county agencies. If requirements vary, the most restrictive 
requirement shall prevail. These permits may include, but are not limited to, those listed below. All 
submittals are required to show proof of compliance with all state and federal regulations. 

(a) Ohio EPA NPDES Permits authorizing stormwater discharges associated with construction 
activity or the most current version thereof: Proof of compliance with these requirements shall 
be the applicant’s Notice of Intent (NOI) number from Ohio EPA, a copy of the Ohio EPA 
Director’s Authorization Letter for the NPDES Permit, or a letter from the site owner certifying 
and explaining why the NPDES Permit is not applicable. 

(b) Section 401 of the Clean Water Act: Proof of compliance shall be a copy of the Ohio EPA 
Water Quality Certification application tracking number, public notice, project approval, or a 
letter from the site owner certifying that a qualified professional has surveyed the site and 
determined that Section 401 of the Clean Water Act is not applicable. Wetlands, and other 
waters of the United States, shall be delineated by protocols accepted by the U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers at the time an application is made under this regulation. 

(c) Ohio EPA Isolated Wetland Permit: Proof of compliance shall be a copy of Ohio EPA’s Isolated 
Wetland Permit application tracking number, public notice, project approval, or a letter from 
the site owner certifying that a qualified professional has surveyed the site and determined that 
Ohio EPA’s Isolated Wetlands Permit is not applicable. Isolated wetlands shall be delineated 
by protocols accepted by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers at the time an application is made 
under this regulation. 

(d) Section 404 of the Clean Water Act: Proof of compliance shall be a copy of the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers Individual Permit application, public notice, or project approval, if an 
Individual Permit is required for the development project. If an Individual Permit is not 
required, the site owner shall submit proof of compliance with the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineer’s Nationwide Permit Program. This shall include one of the following: 

(1) A letter from the site owner certifying that a qualified professional has surveyed the site 
and determined that Section 404 of the Clean Water Act is not applicable. 

(2) A site plan showing that any proposed fill of waters of the United States conforms to the 
general and special conditions specified in the applicable Nationwide Permit. Wetlands, 
and other waters of the United States, shall be delineated by protocols accepted by the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers at the time an application is made under this regulation. 

(e) Ohio Dam Safety Law: Proof of compliance shall be a copy of the Ohio Department of Natural 
Resources (ODNR) Division of Water permit application tracking number, a copy of the project 
approval letter from the ODNR Division of Water, or a letter from the site owner certifying and 
explaining why the Ohio Dam Safety Law is not applicable. 

(f) Riparian Setback Ordinance: Proof of compliance shall be a copy of the zoning certificate 
indicating compliance with Chapter 1169 of the Village of Silver Lake Codified Ordinance. 
Riparian setbacks must be shown on the SWP3 and note demarcation and protection during 
soil-disturbing activities. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

945.10 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. 

(a) The SWP3 must contain a description and location of all appropriate BMPs for each 
construction operation. Prior to the start of grading and within seven days from the start of 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

8 

grubbing, the applicant must implement such controls. The SWP3 must clearly describe the 
appropriate control measures for each major construction activity, the general sequence during 
the construction process under which the measures will be implemented, and the person(s) 
responsible for implementation. The time frame for SWP3 implementation shall be consistent 
with the current Ohio EPA NPDES construction stormwater general permit. 

(1) No project subject to this regulation shall commence without an SWP3 or Abbreviated 
SWP3 approved by the Summit SWCD. 

(2) No project subject to this regulation shall commence without a pre-construction meeting 
being held with the Summit SWCD. It will be the applicant’s responsibility to contact the 
SWCD. 

(b) The SWP3 shall identify the subcontractors engaged in activities that could impact stormwater 
runoff. The SWP3 shall contain signatures from all identified subcontractors indicating that 
they have been informed and understand their roles and responsibilities in complying with the 
SWP3. Ohio EPA recommends that the primary site operator review the SWP3 with the primary 
contractor prior to commencement of construction activities and keep an SWP3 training log to 
demonstrate that this review has occurred. 

(c) All projects, regardless of the area of disturbance, must utilize BMPs to minimize erosion and 
off-site sedimentation. The controls shall include the following minimum components: The 
controls shall include the following minimum components: 

(1) During active construction 

A. Non-Structural Preservation Measures: The applicant must use practices that preserve 
the existing natural condition to the maximum extent practicable. Such practices may 
include preserving riparian areas, preserving existing vegetation and vegetative buffer 
strips, phasing of construction operations to minimize the amount of disturbed land at 
any one time, and designation of tree preservation areas or other protective clearing or 
grubbing practices. 

1. Stream protection. The requirements of the Village of Silver Lake Riparian Setback 
Ordinance shall be followed. 

2. Wetland Protection. The setback requirements of the Village of Silver Lake 
Subdivision Regulations shall be followed in addition to state and federal 
regulations. 

B. Erosion Control Practices: The applicant must use erosion controls capable of 
providing cover over disturbed soils as described in the current Ohio EPA construction 
stormwater general permit. A description of control practices designed to restabilize 
disturbed areas after grading or construction shall be included in the SWP3. The SWP3 
must provide specifications for stabilizing all disturbed areas of the site and providing 
guidance as to which stabilization method will be employed for any time of the year. 
Such practices may include temporary seeding, permanent seeding, mulching, matting, 
sod stabilization, vegetative buffer strips, phasing of construction operations, the use 
of construction entrances, and the use of alternative ground cover.  

C. Runoff Control Practices. The applicant must use measures that control the flow of 
runoff from disturbed areas to prevent erosion. Such practices may include rock check 
dams, pipe slope drains, diversions to direct flow away from exposed soils, and 
protective grading practices. These practices shall divert runoff away from disturbed 
areas and steep slopes where practicable. 

D. Sediment Control Practices. The applicant must install structural practices that shall 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

9 

store runoff, allowing sediments to settle and/or divert flows away from exposed soils 
or otherwise limit runoff from exposed areas. Structural practices shall be used to 
control erosion and trap sediment from a site remaining disturbed for more than 14 
days. Such practices may include, among others, sediment settling ponds, silt fences, 
storm drain inlet protection, and earth diversion dikes or channels that direct runoff to 
a sediment settling pond. All sediment control practices must be capable of ponding or 
filtering runoff to be considered functional. Earth diversion dikes or channels alone are 
not considered a sediment control practice unless used in conjunction with a sediment 
settling pond. The SWP3 shall contain detailed drawings for all structural practices. 

E. Non-Sediment Pollutant Controls: No solid or liquid waste, including building 
materials and concrete wash-out water, shall be discharged in stormwater runoff. The 
applicant must implement site best management practices to prevent toxic materials, 
hazardous materials, or other debris from entering water resources or wetlands. 

F. OFF-SITE VEHICLE TRACKING. Off-site vehicle tracking of sediments and dust 
generation shall be minimized. The SWP3 shall include methods to minimize the 
discharge of pollutants from equipment and vehicle washing, wheel washwater, and 
other washwaters. No detergents may be used to wash vehicles. Washwaters shall be 
treated in a sediment basin or alternative control that provides equivalent treatment 
prior to discharge 

G. Compliance with Other Requirements. The SWP3 shall be consistent with applicable 
state and/or local waste disposal, sanitary sewer, or septic system regulations, including 
provisions prohibiting waste disposal by open burning, and shall provide for the proper 
disposal of contaminated soils located within the development area. 

H. Trench and Groundwater Control. There shall be no sediment-laden or turbid 
discharges to water resources or wetlands resulting from dewatering activities. If trench 
or groundwater contains sediment, it must pass through a sediment-settling pond or 
other equally effective sediment control device prior to being discharged from the 
construction site. Alternatively, sediment may be removed by settling in place or 
dewatering into a sump pit, filter bag, or comparable practice. Groundwater 
dewatering, which does not contain sediment or other pollutants, is not required to be 
treated prior to discharge. However, care must be taken when discharging groundwater 
to prevent it from becoming pollutant-laden by traversing over disturbed soils or other 
pollutant sources. 

I. Internal Inspections. The project engineer shall conduct an initial inspection of all 
erosion and sediment control practices to certify that the installations comply with the 
approved SWP3 per Village of Silver Lake Subdivision Regulations. The applicant 
shall assign qualified inspection personnel to conduct these inspections to ensure that 
the control practices are functional and to evaluate whether the SWP3 is adequate, or 
whether additional control measures are required. Qualified inspection personnel are 
individuals with knowledge and experience in installing and maintaining sediment and 
erosion controls. Internal inspections and documentation of corrective actions taken 
must be made available upon request. At a minimum, all controls on the site shall be 
inspected by the applicant’s agent: 

1. After any storm event greater than one-half inch of rain per 24-hour period by the 
end of the next calendar day, excluding weekends and holidays unless work is 
scheduled, and 

2. At least once every seven calendar days.  

Following each inspection, a checklist must be completed and signed by the qualified 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

10 

inspection personnel representative. At a minimum, the inspection report shall include 
all items referenced in the current Ohio EPA NPDES construction stormwater general 
permit. 

J. Maintenance. The SWP3 shall be designed to minimize maintenance requirements. All 
temporary and permanent control practices shall be maintained and repaired as needed 
to ensure continued performance of their intended function until final stabilization. All 
sediment control practices must be maintained in a functional condition until all up-
slope areas they control are permanently stabilized. The applicant shall provide a 
description of maintenance procedures needed to ensure the continued performance of 
control practices and shall ensure a responsible party and adequate funding to conduct 
this maintenance, all as determined by the Summit SWCD. 

When inspections reveal the need for repair, replacement, or installation of erosion and 
sediment control BMPs, the following procedures shall be followed: 

1. When practices require repair or maintenance. If an inspection reveals that a control 
practice needs repair or maintenance, except a sediment-settling pond, it must be 
repaired or maintained within 3 days of the inspection. Sediment settling ponds 
must be repaired or maintained within 10 days of the inspection. 

2. When practices fail to provide their intended function. If an inspection reveals that 
a control practice fails to perform its intended function as detailed in the SWP3 and 
that another, more appropriate control practice is required, the SWP3 must be 
amended, and the new control practice must be installed within 10 days of the 
inspection. 

3. When practices depicted on the SWP3 are not installed. If an inspection reveals 
that a control practice has not been implemented in accordance with the schedule, 
the control practice must be implemented within 10 days from the date of the 
inspection. If the internal inspection reveals that the planned control practice is not 
needed, the record must contain a statement of explanation as to why the control 
practice is not needed 

K. Final Stabilization. All soil-disturbing activities are complete, and a uniform perennial 
vegetative cover with a density of at least 70% coverage for the area has been 
established on all unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent structures. In 
addition, all temporary erosion and sediment control practices are removed and 
disposed of acceptably, and all trapped sediment is permanently stabilized to prevent 
further erosion. 

(2) Post-Construction Stormwater Management Practices. 

A. Non-Structural Post-Construction Water Quality Practices: Non-structural post-
construction BMPs include preservation, planning, or procedures that direct 
development away from water resources or limit the creation of impervious surfaces. 
Practices such as conservation easements, riparian and wetland setbacks, and 
conservation subdivision design are non-structural controls. 

1. All non-structural water quality practices must be protected from disturbance 
through the project’s construction phase. 

2. All non-structural water quality practices must be protected in perpetuity by using 
appropriate legal tools. All easement or conservation areas must appear on the final 
plat and be disclosed to potential buyers. 

B. Structural Post Construction Water Quality Practices: Structural post-construction 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

11 

BMPs are permanent features constructed to treat stormwater runoff through storage, 
filtration, or infiltration. 

1. All structural post-construction BMPs must be established prior to project 
completion. Structural post-construction water quality practices should be made 
functional once the disturbed areas onsite are stabilized. If detention/retention 
facilities were used for sediment control during development, sediments must be 
removed before the basin is used for post-construction stormwater quality. 

2. The post-construction water quality practice must be maintained in perpetuity by 
those parties identified in the SWP3 or the Storm Water Management Maintenance 
Agreement. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

945.11 FEES. 

An SWP3 and Abbreviated SWP3 review, filing, and inspection fee is part of a complete submittal. 
Fees are required to be submitted to the Summit SWCD before the review process begins. Please consult 
with Summit SWCD for the current fee schedule. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

945.12 BOND. 

If an SWP3 or Abbreviated SWP3 is required by this regulation, soil-disturbing activities shall not be 
permitted until a certified check or bond made payable to the Village of Silver Lake has been received 
by the Village of Silver Lake. The bond amount shall be five thousand dollars ($5,000). The bond will 
be used for the Village to perform the obligations otherwise to be performed by the owner of the 
development area as stated in this regulation and to allow all work to be performed as needed in the 
event that the applicant fails to comply with the provisions of this regulation. The bond shall be returned, 
after all work required by this regulation has been completed and final stabilization has been reached, 
all as determined by the Village service director or his appointee. 

(Ord. 10-2008. Passed 11-18-08.) 

945.13 ENFORCEMENT. 

(a) All development areas will be subject to external inspections by the Summit County SWCD to 
ensure compliance with the approved SWP3 or Abbreviated SWP3. 

(b) After each external inspection, the Summit SWCD may prepare and distribute a status report 
to the applicant. 

(c) If an external inspection determines that operations are being conducted in violation of the 
approved SWP3 or Abbreviated SWP3, the Summit SWCD may take action as detailed in 
Section 945.14. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

945.14 VIOLATIONS. 

(a) No person shall violate or cause or knowingly permit to be violated any of the provisions of 
this regulation or fail to comply with any of such provisions or with any lawful requirements 
of any public authority made pursuant to this regulation, or knowingly use or cause or permit 
the use of any lands in violation of this regulation or in violation of any permit granted under 
this regulation. 

(b) If it appears that a violation of any of these rules has occurred, the owner and developer will be 
notified of the deficiencies or noncompliance in writing by mail/email. If, within 10 days after 
receipt of the letter/email, the owner or developer has not rectified the deficiency or received 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

12 

approval of plans for its correction, the deficiency or noncompliance shall be reported to the 
Law Director for immediate enforcement of these regulations.  

(c) If Summit SWCD is called and determines that a violation of any of these rules has occurred, 
the owner and developer will be notified of deficiencies or noncompliance in writing by 
mail/email. The owner or developer will have 10 workdays after receiving the letter/email to 
rectify the deficiency or receive approval of plans for its correction. Upon reinspection by 
Summit SWCD, the deficiencies have not been rectified, the Summit SWCD shall issue a 
second Notice of Violation. A reinspection fee of $250.00 will be charged to the owner by 
Summit SWCD for each Notice of Violation reinspection.  

(d) If after a period of not less than 10 workdays, except as provided in division (g) of this section, 
has elapsed following the issuance of the second Notice of Violation, the violation continues, 
and the Summit SWCD shall issue a stop work order after first obtaining the written approval 
of the Village Law Director if, in the opinion of the Law Director, the violation is egregious. 

(e) Once a stop-work order is issued, the Summit SCWD shall request, in writing, the Village Law 
Director to seek an injunction or other appropriate relief in the Summit County Court of 
Common Pleas to abate excessive erosion or sedimentation and secure compliance with the 
rules adopted under this section.  

(f) Upon notice, the Village Law Director may suspend any active soil-disturbing activity and may 
require immediate erosion and sediment control measures whenever he or she determines that 
such activity is not meeting the intent of this regulation. A stop work order shall be given to the 
applicant, and shall state the condition under which work may be resumed. In instances, 
however, where the Village Law Director and/or designee finds that immediate action is 
necessary for public safety or the public interest, he or she may require that work be stopped 
upon verbal order pending issuance of the written order. 

(g) No stop-work order shall be issued under this section against any public highway, 
transportation, or drainage improvement or maintenance project undertaken by a government 
agency or political subdivision in accordance with a statement of its standard sediment control 
policies that are approved by the county or the Chief of the Division of Soil and Water 
Conservation at ODNR. 

(h) Village of Silver Lake Planning Commission has the reserved right to deny the issuance of any 
further plat approvals for the property in question until the site is brought into compliance with 
these regulations. 

(i) The Summit County Department of Building Standards has the reserved right to suspend the 
issuance of occupancy certificates within developments that do not comply with these 
regulations. 

(j) The Village of Silver Lake Engineers Office has the reserved right to suspend the inspection of 
site improvements and refuse the release of bonds on developments that do not comply with 
these regulations. 

(k) Summit SWCD inspections do not relinquish the responsibility of the owner to comply with 
Ohio EPA NPDES inspection requirements. 

(Ord. 30-2022. Passed 3-21-22.) 

945.15 APPEALS. 

Any person aggrieved by any order, requirement, determination, or any other action or inaction by 
Village of Silver Lake in relation to this regulation may appeal to the court of common pleas. Such an 
appeal shall be made in conformity with Ohio R.C. Section 2506.01 et seq. Written notice of appeal 
shall be served on Village of Silver Lake, and a copy shall be provided to the Summit SWCD. 



Ord. 30-2022: Exhibit A 

13 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 

945.16 SUMMIT SCWD AGREEMENT. 

The Village of Silver Lake is hereby authorized to negotiate an agreement with the Summit SCWD to 
ensure the Summit SCWD performs its duties in accordance with this chapter. The Council’s 
authorization is required prior to the execution or amendment of such agreement.  

(Ord. 30-2022. Adopted 3-21-22.) 

945.99 PENALTY. 

(a) Any person, firm, entity, or corporation, including but not limited to, the owner of the property, 
their agents and assigns, occupant, property manager, and any contractor or subcontractor who 
violates or fails to comply with any provision of this regulation is guilty of a misdemeanor of 
the third degree and shall be fined no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) or imprisoned 
for no more than 60 days, or both, for each offense. A separate offense shall be deemed 
committed each day during or on which a violation or noncompliance occurs or continues. 

(b) The imposition of any other penalties provided herein shall not preclude Village of Silver Lake 
from instituting an appropriate action or proceeding in a court of proper jurisdiction to prevent 
an unlawful development, or to restrain, correct, or abate a violation, or to require compliance 
with the provisions of this regulation or other applicable laws, ordinances, rules, or regulations, 
or the orders of Village of Silver Lake. 

(Ord. 15-2022. Passed 2-7-22.) 


	00a 22.05.16 Agenda
	22.04.18 Council
	22.05.04 Special Council
	22.34 cold milling paving perrin
	22.34b bid tab sheet perrin
	22.35 change order englewood
	22.35 exhibit a change orders englewood
	22.36 aps amend 4 cold milling perrin
	22.37 summit police month
	22.37b summit light it blue flyer handout
	22.38a Wichert Insurance Res
	22.38b handout wichert
	22.39 Codified Ordinance Replacement Pages
	22.40 park board amend donation policy
	22.40b park board NEW donation policy
	22.40c OLD policy
	222.30 center
	222.30 erosion sediment storm water 945
	222.30b exhibit and handout
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



